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Office of the Comptroller

Milwaukee County

Scott B, Manske +« Comptroller

July 31, 2015

To: Honorable Members of the Milwaukee County Board of Supervisors
and the Citizens of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

A) COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (“CAFR™):
CAFR Overview

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (“County”) for
the year ended December 31, 2014 is hereby submitted for your information. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material
respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the various funds and component units of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin activities have been included.

The CAFR is presented in three sections:

The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, includes this letter of transmittal, the prior year’s Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the County's organizational chart, and a list of the
County's principal elected and appointed officials. It is designed to give the reader of the financial report
some basic background information about the County.

The Financial Section includes the independent auditors’ report on the basic financial statements,
management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary information,
and the other supplementary information including the combining and individual fund financial statements
and schedules.

The County has prepared the Financial Section to meet the requirements of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Governments (“GASB 347). Other Supplementary Information, section 4
below, is not required by GASB 34 but provides useful information about the non-major funds of
Milwaukee County.

1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”), which is unaudited, is a narrative report
providing financial information about the County. Readers of this report are encouraged to read
the MD&A in conjunction with this Letter of Transmittal. The MD&A provides basic financial
information about the County and an overview of the County’s activities.
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2)

3)

4)

Basic Financial Statements

¢ Government-wide Financial Statements consisting of a statement of net position and a
statement of activities, provide a comprehensive financial picture of the County, split
between governmental activities and business-type activities. These statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, where all assets/deferred outflows of resources, liabilities/deferred inflows of
resources, revenues, and expenses of the County are reported. Internal service funds are
combined with governmental activities for presentation purposes.

¢ Fund Financial Statements report on the major individual governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary funds of the County. Budgetary comparisons are also provided to allow the
reader to see the original adopted budget, the final budget, and the actual expenditures and
revenues for the County’s general fund. The governmental funds are prepared and
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The proprietary funds are prepared
on an accrual basis of accounting. With the governmental funds having a different basis
of accounting between the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial
statements, a schedule is provided that reconciles these accounting differences. The
reconciliation provides a bridge between governmental activities on the statement of net
position with the governmental funds on the balance sheet and the governmental funds net
change in fund balances on the statement of activities with the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The proprietary funds
statement reports on each of the enterprise funds and includes a separate column that
combines all internal service funds.

e Component Units include the funds of the primary government and the following discrete
component units: the Milwaukee Public Museum, Inc., the Milwaukee County War
Memorial, Inc., the Marcus Center for the Performing Arts, and the Milwaukee County
Research Park Corporation.

Discretely presented component units are more distinctly separate from the primary
government and are therefore reported in a separate column in the government-wide
financial statements. These entities are included because generally accepted accounting
principles require that organizations for which the County either has a financial
responsibility or governance influence, such as board appointments, be reported with
Milwaukee County.

¢ Notes to the Financial Statements are explanatory notes to the financial statements as
required by governmental accounting standards.

Required Supplementary Information is required schedules of supplementary data immediately
after the notes to the financial statements.

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules show the combining statements for
the non-major governmental funds, the internal service funds, as well as budgetary comparisons
for major funds other than the General Fund. As noted earlier, the internal service funds are
combined and reported as a separate column in the proprietary fund financial statements. They are
presented here because they are not considered to be major funds.
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The Statistical Section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic information
generally presented on a multi-year basis.

B) COUNTY GOVERNMENT

A County Executive and an 18 - member Board of Supervisors govern Milwaukee County. The County
Executive, the County Supervisors and the Comptroller are elected to nonpartisan four-year terms. Each
Supervisor represents about 53,000 people. In addition, the Clerk of Circuit Courts, County Clerk, County
Treasurer, District Attorney, Register of Deeds, and Sheriff are each elected to serve four-year terms on a
partisan basis.

Board of Supervisors. The County Board determines County policy and directs the activities of County
government by the adoption of ordinances and resolutions, under authority vested in it by State Statutes.
The County Board meets on a monthly basis to transact official business, and its committees meet regularly
during the monthly cycles to hold hearings, gather information and take testimony preparatory to making
recommendations to the full County Board. There are eight standing committees of the County Board.

Economic and Community Development ¢ Finance, Personnel and Audit
Health and Human Needs e Intergovernmental Relations
Judiciary, Safety and General Services e Parks, Energy and Environment
Transportation, Public Works and Transit e Committee of the Whole

The Chairperson of the County Board is elected by the members of the County Board following their
election every four years and is responsible for presiding at County Board meetings, ruling on procedural
matters, representing the County Board at official functions, and making appointments to County Board
committees, special subcommittees, boards and commissions.

On June 2, 2013, Wisconsin Act 14 (“Act 14”) relating to the County became effective. Act 14, among
other things, changes the compensation structure of a member (“Supervisor”) of the County Board, changes
the length of the term of a supervisor from four years to two years, affects the right of an annuitant under
the Milwaukee County Employee’s Retirement System if rehired by the County, limits the authority of the
County to enter into certain intergovernmental agreements, revises the approval process for public
contracts, removes and clarifies some authority of the Board, increases and clarifies the authority of the
County Executive of the County, and requires a referendum regarding the compensation of the Supervisors.

Pursuant to Act 14, a local referendum was held in Milwaukee County on April 1, 2014 that if approved
would place limitations on the annual salaries of the County Board chairperson and supervisors. The
referendum was approved by a vote of 47,588 (70.2%) to 20,182 (20.8%).

County Executive’s Office. Milwaukee County was the first county in the State to establish an executive
branch. The County Executive appoints five cabinet officers to assist him in carrying out the executive
functions:

Director - Department of Administrative Services

Director - Department of Human Resources

Director - Department of Health and Human Services
Director - Department of Parks, Recreation and Culture
Director - Department of Transportation and Public Works
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In addition, the County Executive appoints and manages heads of the following departments:

Child Support Services
Family Care

House of Correction
UW - Extension
Zoological Gardens

Aging

Government Affairs
Medical Examiner
Veterans Service Office

Functions of the County Executive’s office include: coordination and direction of administrative and
management functions of the County government not otherwise vested by law in boards, commissions or
other elected officers; appointment of department heads, except where statute provides otherwise, and
members of boards and commissions, subject to confirmation by the County Board; preparation and
submission of an annual County budget to the County Board; submission annually, and otherwise if
necessary, of a message to the County Board setting forth the condition of the County and recommending
changes and improvements in County programs and services; and review for approval or veto of all
resolutions and ordinances enacted by the County Board.

Administration. The Administrative function includes the Department of Administrative Services,
Department of Human Resources, Corporation Counsel and boards and commissions such as the Civil
Service Commission, Ethics Board, and the Personnel Review Board.

The Department of Administrative Services is responsible for a variety of governmental
functions. The various divisions provide services for other departments including facilities
management, information management, risk management, economic development, administration
and budget oversight, disabilities program management, procurement and disadvantaged business
enterprise programs. The Department is also responsible for the County’s water utility.

The Department of Human Resources (“DHR”) provides Milwaukee County government with
an equitable and effective system for the recruitment, classification, compensation, development
and retention of a talented, skilled and culturally diversified workforce. DHR assures strict
adherence to Civil Service Rules, State and Federal Laws and County ordinances, regulations and
policies related to human resources and affirmative action.

In 2012, DHR was transferred from the Department of Administrative services umbrella and
became its own independent department encompassing the Compensation, Training & Employee
Relations, Employment & Staffing, Health Benefits and the Employment Retirement System
functions. In 2013, the Department of Labor Relations was transferred to DHR to negotiate and
administer all collective bargaining agreements, establish labor relations training programs for
supervisory staff and conduct all procedures ordered by the Wisconsin Employment Relations
Commission, U.S. Department of Labor, and/or the Wisconsin Department of Workforce
Development.

The Office of Corporation Counsel ensures that Milwaukee County, its officers, employees, and
agents adhere to all applicable legal requirements and works to minimize personal and fiscal
liability for the aforementioned group.
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The Civil Service Commission is an independent body charged with oversight of Milwaukee
County’s Civil Service System. Consisting of five members, the Commission conducts hearings
on the merit system and application of Civil Service Rules.

The Ethics Board assures the confidence of the general public in the integrity of Milwaukee
County government. The Board assures the public that all Milwaukee County employees, office
holders, candidates for public office and citizens serving on boards and commissions of Milwaukee
County are complying with the Ethics Code requirements.

The Personnel Review Board provides fair and impartial due process hearings for the suspension,
demotion or discharge of County employees in the classified service as provided by law and as
prescribed under State and local Statutes and ordinances.

General Governmental Services. The General Governmental Services group includes the County
Treasurer, the County Clerk, the Register of Deeds, Office of the Comptroller and an Election Commission.

The County Treasurer acts as the County's banker, receiving and disbursing all funds as provided
by state law and county ordinances; providing for daily cash requirements of Milwaukee County,
and investing public funds not used for daily operations. The Treasurer's Office also collects
delinquent property or real estate taxes for Milwaukee County's 18 suburban municipalities as
required by State Statutes. The City of Milwaukee collects is own delinquent taxes. The County
Treasurer also maintains property tax data that is accessible to the public at the Courthouse office.
The Treasurer also acts under authority vested in the office by the Wisconsin Statutes.

The County Clerk records the proceedings of the County Board of Supervisors, maintains all
legislative files, updates existing ordinances and publishes new ordinances on-line. The County
Clerk staffs all County Board meetings and County Board committee meetings. The County Clerk
also maintains the County Legislative Information Center (“CLIC”), which provides on-line public
access to legislative documents, meeting agendas and meeting minutes, as well as live on-line
streaming of meetings of the County Board and its committees. The County Clerk also issues
marriage licenses and domestic partnership declarations, registers all lobbyists, lobbying principals
and reports to the public on lobbying activity. Other duties include accepting applications for
passports, selling bus tickets, and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”) licenses
and permits. As an information clearinghouse for County government, the County Clerk
administers oaths of office, maintains the central files for Milwaukee County reports, records,
contracts and corporate documents, receives and publicly opens competitive bids for County
contracts. The County Clerk receives any claims filed against Milwaukee County. The County
Clerk also acts under authority vested in the office by the Wisconsin Statutes.

In 2014, Wisconsin State Statutes were amended so that the County Clerk also serves as the
executive director of the Milwaukee County Election Commission. As executive director, the
County Clerk is responsible for performing whatever duties are assigned by the commission.

The Register of Deeds records, indexes and scans real estate documents, corporation papers,
military discharges, informal probate instruments and financing statements; files and indexes birth,
marriage and death certificates; sells copies of the above described documents; collects the real
estate transfer tax; and performs such other functions as provided by law. The Register of Deeds
also acts under authority vested in the office by the Wisconsin Statutes.
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The Office of the Comptroller (“OOC”) is required to monitor and report on the County’s current
fiscal health, to act as the County auditor, and to provide an independent fiscal review on any
proposed spending at the request of the County Board and/or County Executive. The Comptroller
also acts under authority vested in the office by the Wisconsin Statutes. The OOC consists of
Accounts Payable, Administration, Audit Services, Capital and Debt Monitoring, Central
Accounting, Central Payroll, and Research and Policy.

In 2013, the County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to State Statutes, created a four-employee
research division within the Office of the Comptroller. This division provides independent and
nonpartisan research services for the board and the county executive.

The Election Commission administers Federal, State, County, and Municipal elections in a manner
that assures public confidence in the accuracy, efficiency and fairness of the election process and
to enforce State Election and Campaign Finance laws.

Courts and Judiciary. The Courts and Judiciary function includes the Department of Combined Court
Related Operations, Pretrial Services Division and Department of Child Support Services.

The Department of Combined Court Related Operations operates the Milwaukee County
Circuit Courts, which constitutes the First Judicial Administrative District of the state system. The
district currently has 47 judges and 22.5 full-time equivalent court commissioners. The Department
of Combined Court Related Operations includes the Chief Judge and is made up of three divisions
which were formerly three separate departments.

The Family Court Commissioner Division conducts hearings for family matters of
separation, divorce, domestic abuse, and harassment cases; conducts paternity hearings and
monitors the job search task for those individuals liable for child support; and provides
mediation services and custody studies for the Family Courts as mandated by Section
767.11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

The Register in Probate maintains all records and files of probate proceedings and assists
the courts in adjudicating matters involving probate, trusts, guardianships of persons and
estates, conservatorships, protective placements, involuntary commitments, temporary
restraining orders and injunctions in individuals at risk cases.

The County-funded State Court Services consists of two sections: the Chief Judge and
the Clerk of Circuit Court. The Chief Judge is responsible for the oversight of
administration of judicial activities in the 47 circuit courts within the First Judicial
Administrative District. The Clerk of Circuit Court includes the following divisions:
Administration, Criminal, Civil, and Children’s. The Clerk of Circuit Court maintains the
records, books and files of the Circuit Courts, Civil, Family, Criminal and Children’s
Divisions; prepares the daily court calendar; and processes all cases. Eligible jurors are
also summoned by the Clerk of Circuit Court.

The Pretrial Services Division provides screening, intervention and supervision services for
pretrial defendants. This division is managed by the Chief Judge of the Milwaukee County Circuit
Courts and Judicial Review Coordinator. This division includes funding for the Universal
Screening program, which screens individuals who are booked into the Milwaukee County
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Criminal Justice Facility, for the purpose of providing pretrial risk information on defendants to
judges, commissioners, prosecutors and defense attorneys; and to determine suitability for pretrial
services and Early Intervention programs. Funding for services such as the Drug Treatment Court
Coordinator, Treatment Alternatives and Diversion program, drug testing, Secure Continuous
Remote Alcohol and GPS monitoring is also provided.

The Department of Child Support Services implements and administers the Child Support
Enforcement Act pursuant to Title 1V-D of the Federal Social Security Act and Sections 49.22 and
59.53(5) of the Wisconsin Statutes, under contract with the Wisconsin Department of Children and
Families.  The Department has four divisions: Case Management (Establishment and
Enforcement), Financial, Legal and Operations. The Department monitors approximately 125,000
cases annually for establishment and enforcement of child support obligation, maintains Milwaukee
County family court orders on Kids Information Data System, the statewide support computer
system, and represents the Department’s interests in family court hearings in the County.

Public Safety. The Public Safety function includes the Office of the Sheriff, House of Correction, District
Attorney and Medical Examiner.’

The Office of the Sheriff acts as an arm of the criminal justice system which consists of carrying
out criminal investigations, effecting arrests and warrants, detaining prisoners, providing court
security, serving process papers, transporting prisoners and patients and extraditing criminals. The
Office of the Sheriff is organized into the following divisions: Administration Bureau, Detention
Services Bureau, and Police Services Bureau.

The Administration Bureau performs management and support functions for the Sheriff,
communications, training and public information.

The Detention Services Bureau includes the Criminal Justice Facility (“CJF”), Court
Services, Support Administration, and Central Records. The CJF is a secure detention
facility with a total bed space of 960 detainees and is primarily a pre-trial holding facility;
although a small number of sentenced offenders awaiting transfers or hearings are also
housed at the jail.

The Police Services Bureau is responsible for patrolling the County airports, County
grounds, County parks and expressways. In addition, the Police Services Bureau includes
the Civil Process Unit, Criminal Investigation Division, the Drug Enforcement Unit, the
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area, the Special Weapons and Tactics team, the bomb
disposal unit and the dive team. In addition, the Police Services Bureau serves state-
mandated civil writs such as temporary restraining orders, commitments to mental health,
body attachments, writs of restitution/assistance, executions and evictions.

1 In 2015, the County consolidated various emergency management functions into the new Office of
Emergency Management. This consolidation included Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”) from the
Department of Health and Human Services, 911 Communication Services from the Office of the Sheriff
and Radio Services from the Department of Administrative Services — Information Management Services
Division.
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The House of Correction receives and maintains custody of all sentenced inmates in Milwaukee
County committed by authorized courts for periods not exceeding one year and from other
jurisdictions as authorized by County ordinance; provides programs of work release, rehabilitation,
education, work, recreation and training; provides medical, dental and other necessary services in
conjunction with the Detention branch of the Sheriff’s Department; and releases inmates upon
expiration of sentence, upon orders of the courts or other recognized authorities. Section 302.315
of the Wisconsin Statutes permits, but does not require, this institution to receive and maintain
custody of pretrial inmates at the request of the Milwaukee County Sheriff. The Department also
operates a program of home detention using electronic surveillance equipment and other systems
of control. The Department also includes the funding for the Day Reporting Center where
sentenced inmates can obtain job training and AODA services.

The Milwaukee County District Attorney’s Office, pursuant to Section 978.05 of the Wisconsin
Statutes, has jurisdiction for criminal and juvenile cases in the circuit courts of Milwaukee County.
General Crimes Division staff are responsible for general felony and misdemeanor courts; Violent
Crimes Division staff are responsible for felony drug and firearms crimes in specialized felony
courts; Homicide and Sensitive Crimes Division staff process homicide, sexual assault, and child
abuse cases in specialized felony courts; Juvenile Division staff are responsible for juvenile
delinquency and child welfare care in the Children’s Court of Milwaukee County; the Community
Prosecution Unit supervises community prosecutors in six Milwaukee police district stations; and
the Domestic Violence Unit prosecutes all domestic violence cases in three specialized courts.
District attorneys and assistant district attorneys present evidence, argue motions, negotiate cases
and conduct jury and court trials.

The District Attorney’s Office investigates police shootings of civilians and deaths in police
custody, public corruption, major multi-jurisdictional crimes, industrial deaths and injuries, as well
as providing post-charging investigation on major crimes, and maintains office security. The
District Attorney’s Office also operates the Witness Security Program, which seeks to ensure that
witnesses who are threatened or intimidated are able to safely appear and testify in court, the
Diversion and Treatment Alternatives to Criminal Charges Program, and administers federal and
state grant funded programs, including the Victim/Witness Program, the Victims of Crime Act, the
Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Prosecution of Drug Crimes, Violence Against Woman Acts, and
the High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area grant, among others.

The Medical Examiner’s Office investigates all deaths in which there are unexplained, unusual or
suspicious circumstances, for example, homicides, suicides, accidental deaths and all deaths in
which there is no physician in attendance. Staff of the Medical Examiner’s Office perform
autopsies, histological studies and toxicological analyses; testify in court in regard to all
investigative findings; issue death certificates, cremation permits and disinterment permits; take
possession of, store and arrange for the final disposition of bodies when investigation is required
or bodies are unclaimed; locate relatives of deceased persons; safeguard and legally dispose of
money and property of deceased persons; and render scientific aid to various law enforcement
agencies in the examination of evidence.

Transportation. The Department of Transportation administers two County airports, the transit/Para
transit system, highway maintenance, and fleet management.



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

Letter of Transmittal

The Airport Division operates the General Mitchell International Airport (“GMIA”) and the
Lawrence J. Timmerman Airport. This division is discussed in greater detail below under
“Business-type Functions”.

The Milwaukee County Transit System is the County’s mass transit system. This division is
discussed in greater detail below under “Business-type Functions”.

The Highway Division maintains 57 centerline miles of freeways, 100 centerline miles of state
trunk highways and approximately 87 centerline miles of county trunk highways. Expenses for
general and winter maintenance of state trunk highways within the County are fully offset by state
reimbursement revenues. The Transportation Services Section provides transportation planning
and engineering services and cost-effectively plans, designs and implements projects necessary to
maintain and enhance the safety and efficiency of the County’s highways, bridges and traffic
control facilities.  Transportation functions include highway engineering, construction
management, bridge engineering and traffic engineering.

The Fleet Management Division purchases and maintains vehicles and equipment used by
Milwaukee County departments. This department consists of three functions: Equipment Repairs,
Inventory Management, and Equipment Coordination. Equipment Repairs maintains and manages
approximately 2,200 vehicles and pieces of equipment. Inventory Management maintains and
manages inventory of repair parts for all Milwaukee County vehicles. Inventory Management also
manages and operates four conveniently located fueling sites supplying 700,000 plus gallons of
fuel annually. Equipment Coordination researches and develops the specifications for purchasing
new vehicles and equipment and works with user departments to ensure the correct piece of
equipment is purchased. Equipment Coordination also hosts and coordinates a semi-annual Public
Auction of used equipment for Milwaukee County and other municipalities in the area.

Health and Human Services. This functional area consists of the Department of Health and Human
Services, Behavioral Health Division, Department on Aging, and Department of Family Care.

The Department of Health and Human Services (“DHHS”) provides a wide range of life-
sustaining, life-saving and life-enhancing services to children and adults through age 60. Programs
focus on providing services for delinquent children, dysfunctional families, developmentally
disabled persons, physically disable persons, mentally ill persons, homeless persons, and those in
need of financial assistance. Many DHHS services are mandated by State Statute and/or provided
through a contract between the state and the County. DHHS consists of five service areas including
the divisions of Delinquency and Court Services, Disabilities Services, Housing, Director’s Office
& Management Services and Emergency Medical Services.

The Delinquency and Court Services Division provides custodial intake services,
administers a wide continuum of juvenile justice programs and provides support staff for
the operation of the Children’s Court to promote public safety. The division operates a
24/7, 120-bed secure juvenile detention center facility, primarily housing juveniles pending
a court hearing or those deemed out of compliance with supervision conditions. Juvenile
justice programs and services provided to alleged and adjudicated delinquent youth include
pre-dispositional secure and non-secure out-of-home placements and monitoring, court
diversion supervision and services, post-dispositional placements and services and
probation supervision and programs that are designed as alternatives to placement in state
correctional facilities.

10
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The Disabilities Services Division (“DSD”) provides services to adults with special needs
between the ages of 18 and 59 and to children birth to 21 with disabilities and their families.
Services are targeted at populations with physical and developmental disabilities and
sensory impairment. A wide variety of services are provided or purchased, including case
management for long-term support, work employment services, community support, and
service access and prevention. The division also provides services through the Disabilities
Resource Center such as information and assistance, service access and prevention,
disability benefits counseling and Family Care entitlement benefits through access to
publicly funded long-term care. DSD also manages the Interim Disability Assistance
Program and the General Assistance burials programs. The division coordinates transition
services from the school system to the adult system and investigates abuse and neglect
incidences on behalf of adults at risk.

The Housing Division consolidates several housing programs in order to better integrate
housing programs with the social services provided by DHHS. The division focuses on
prioritizing the use of County housing resources to address the needs of persons with
mental illness or other special needs. The division administers the following Housing and
Urban Development funded programs: Shelter Plus Care, which links housing subsidies
with case management for persons with mental illness; Safe Haven, which provides
transitional housing for formerly homeless persons with mental illness; Housing Choice
Voucher, which assists clients with locating affordable housing and provides rent
subsidies; HOME/Home Repair, which provides low- or no-interest loans to low-income
persons for home repairs and improvements. The division also administers the Community
Development Block Grant program and Pathways to Permanent Housing program.

The Director’s Office & Management Services Division provide administrative guidance,
accounting support, and contract oversight to all DHHS program areas. This division also
oversees the Home Energy Program and 211 Impact, which is a referral service for
individuals in need of social services.

The Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”) program supports the provision of paramedic
services in the County through a variety of initiatives. The Communication Center is
staffed with emergency medical communicators to coordinate on-line medical control and
hospital notification for local and regional emergency calls. The EMS program also
operates the Education/Training Center for members of the paramedic transport units
serving Milwaukee County and the American Heart Association Community Training
Center, which provides public education for cardiopulmonary resuscitation, automatic
external defibrillator, advanced life support and pediatric advanced life support courses.
Medical direction and control for the EMS program is provided through a professional
services contract with the Medical College of Wisconsin.?

2 In 2015, the County consolidated various emergency management functions into the new Office of
Emergency Management. This consolidation included Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”) from the
Department of Health and Human Services, 911 Communication Services from the Office of the Sheriff
and Radio Services from the Department of Administrative Services — Information Management Services

Division.

11
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The Behavioral Health Division (“BHD”) provides care and treatment of persons with disorders
related to alcohol and substance abuse as well as developmentally, emotionally and mentally ill
adults, children and adolescents. The range of services provided by the BHD encompasses
inpatient care, outpatient care and day treatment. Acute hospital admissions are initiated by
voluntary application or through legal detention methods such as court commitment. Extended
care services are provided at federally certified, skilled nursing facilities and at facilities for the
developmentally disabled. Day treatment is offered to patients who have progressed to the stage
where inpatient hospitalization is no longer indicated but who require more intensive treatment than
is available in an outpatient facility. The Community Services Branch provides both mental health
and alcohol and other drug addiction services through contracts with community service providers
or at community clinics. Over the past couple of years, the BHD has phased out its extended care
services and moved long-term care patients into community settings.

On April 10, 2014, Wisconsin Act 203 (“Act 203”) related to County mental health services became
effective. Act 203, among other things, removed all mental health jurisdiction from the County
Board and put it under the jurisdiction of the newly created Milwaukee County Mental Health
Board (“MCMHB”). The MCMHB is appointed by the Governor with input by the County
Executive and County Board. There are two ex officio members.

The total 2014 budgeted tax levy for the services provided under the jurisdiction of the MCMHB
was $57.5 million; a total of 625 full time equivalents were also transferred to the jurisdiction of
the MCMHB. Beginning with the 2015 Budget, the MCMHB will recommend an operating budget
to the County Executive. The final budget presented by the County Executive must have a levy
between $53 and $65 million unless the County Board, MCMHB and County Executive agree to
an amount outside the range. The County Board has no authority to approve a tax levy amount
other than that presented by the County Executive. Since the MCMHB does not have direct bond
authority, any capital projects needed would have to be paid from current operating appropriations
or through bonds, if approved by the County Board of Supervisors.

The Department on Aging was created in 1991 to administer aging programs and to serve as the
County’s designated area agency on aging. The Department on Aging plans for and services the
growing needs of the County’s large and diverse older adult population. Services provided by the
Department on Aging are designed to provide an appropriate mix of community-based care and
direct services to prevent the inappropriate and costly institutionalization of older adults. The
Department on Aging contains three major program areas: Administration, Area Agency Services
and the Aging Resource Center.

Administration provides administrative guidance, accounting support, and contract
oversight to all Aging program areas.

Area Agency Services provides a network of support services to the aging population
including the Senior Meal Program and the five senior centers in the County and provides
a range of grants to community based agencies to provide specialized programming for
elderly adults. This division also provides staff support to the Milwaukee County
Commission on Aging, which serves as the area’s planning committee.

The Aging Resource Center serves as an information clearinghouse, provides eligibility

assessments for persons seeking assistance in any departmental program and acts as a point
of entry for all publicly funded long term care programs. The Resource Center also acts as
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the elder abuse/protective services agency for persons over 60 in Milwaukee County and
provides evidence based wellness and prevention programs.

The Department of Family Care (“DFC”) was originally created in 2000 as the Milwaukee
County Department on Aging — Care Management Organization to operate a Family Care Program
for people age 60 and older. Under Milwaukee County’s existing contract with the State
Department of Health Services (“DHS”), DFC must operate separately from both the Aging
Resource Center and the Disability Resource Center. Since it is the responsibility of the Resource
Centers to objectively inform persons in need of long-term care about the options available to them,
DHS considers the organizational separation of the two functions an essential element in the
administration of the Family Care Benefit, resulting in the creation of the Department of Family
Care.

DFC, formally established in 2010, administers the Family Care benefit for both frail elders (age
60 and over) and persons with disabilities (ages 18-59) who are determined to be eligible by a
Resource Center. DFC is responsible for creating a comprehensive plan of care for each member;
contracting with a wide range of service providers; and monitoring the quality of services that
members receive. DFC delivers member-centered, community-based, outcome-focused, managed
long-term care services and member-centered care planning for all Family Care members. In return
for coordinating and managing these services, the DFC receives a capitated rate payment per
member per month from the state. The DFC now offers the Family Care benefit to eligible members
in seven counties outside of Milwaukee (Racine, Kenosha, Waukesha, Washington, Walworth,
Ozaukee, and Sheboygan).

DFC operates under both a contract with the State of Wisconsin Department of Health Services and
a permit issued by the State of Wisconsin Office of the Commissioner of Insurance and uses no
county tax levy.

Parks, Recreation and Culture. This functional area includes the Department of Parks, Recreation and
Culture, the Milwaukee County Zoo, the Milwaukee Public Museum and other cultural institutions that
receive County support.

The Department of Parks, Recreation and Culture operates the Milwaukee County Park System,
which comprises 15,316 acres of parkland, including 156 parks and parkways. The Parks
Department provides a variety of sports and recreation opportunities to County residents and
visitors. The Parks Department maintains 15 golf courses, indoor and outdoor aquatic facilities, an
indoor ice arena and a sports complex that hosts tournaments, competitions, leagues and
tradeshows. The 117-mile Oak Leaf Recreational Trail, along with 84 miles of parkways, provides
off-road paved paths for walking and biking and connects all major parks and parkways in the Park
System. In addition, dozens of parks have baseball or softball fields, basketball courts, sand
volleyball, tennis courts, disc golf, rugby fields, cricket courts and other facilities that can be rented
or used recreationally. The Parks Department also offers both supervised sports activities as well
as leisure recreation in exercise and game room gatherings in its community centers. The centers
offer a host of activities that focus on the needs of the community including indoor basketball,
boxing, help with homework and movie nights.

Roughly 9,100 acres of parkland are managed as natural areas. Additional public educational

opportunities are offered through Boerner Botanical Gardens, the Mitchell Park Horticultural
Conservatory and Wehr Nature Center. The Department also maintains over 14 miles of lakefront
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property and operates five beaches along Lake Michigan. Fishing and boating access is provided
through five launch sites along the lake, including McKinley Marina and South Shore Park.

The Zoological Department operates the Milwaukee County Zoo (“Z00”), one of the country’s
finest zoological attractions with over 400 species and 2,700 mammals, birds, fish, amphibians and
reptiles in specialized habitats spanning over 200 wooded acres and 450,000 square feet of
facilities. Some of the exhibits at the Zoo include the Family Farm, a working farm and dairy
complex; the Peck Welcome Center; the Sea Lion and Polar Bear exhibit; the Aviary; the Australian
Building; the Apes of Africa exhibit; the Education Facility; the Lake Evinrude Deck; the Primate
Building; the Aquarium/Reptile Building; and the Special Exhibits Building. Other Zoo facilities
include a chairlift, a railroad, a carousel, ropes course, zip line and the Kohl’s Cares for Kids Play
Area. Zoo attendance in 2014 was 1,267,356 visitors.

The Marcus Center for the Performing Arts (“Marcus Center”) is a cultural center that hosts the
Milwaukee Symphony Orchestra, Milwaukee Ballet Company, Florentine Opera, Milwaukee
Youth Symphony, First Stage Milwaukee and other special arts groups and entertainment events.
The County’s annual operating contribution to the Marcus Center for 2014 is $1.1 million.

The Milwaukee Public Museum, Inc. (“MPM”) operates through a public-private partnership
since 1992. The private, not-for-profit organization MPM Inc. operates the museum, and the
County owns the buildings and artifacts. The board of directors of MPM includes representatives
appointed by the County Board and the County Executive.

MPM hosts international exhibitions annually and had attendance of 430,005 in 2014. MPM also
operates an IMAX theater and the Daniel M. Soref Planetarium to provide additional educational
programming. Through its distance learning program, the museum provides remote educational
programs to students throughout the region, the County, and around the world.

Business-type Functions. The County operates General Mitchell International Airport, Lawrence J.
Timmerman Airport, and Milwaukee County Transit Services and classifies these enterprise fund activities
as business-type activity in the government-wide financial statements.

The Airport Division of the Department of Transportation operates the General Mitchell
International Airport (“GMIA”) and the Lawrence J. Timmerman Airport (“LJT”).

GMIA is located six miles south of the City of Milwaukee’s central business district and
covers over 2,386 acres. GMIA is the largest and busiest airport in Wisconsin, serving a
total of 6,554,152 passengers in 2014. It is the only airport in Wisconsin with service from
all the major domestic airlines.

Nine airlines provide approximately 125 daily departures to 39 nonstop destinations
throughout North America. Connections are available to hundreds of cities throughout the
world. GMIA’s low fares and parking rates attract travelers from throughout Wisconsin
and northern Illinois.

LJT is located in the northwest quadrant of the County. This 420-acre general aviation
facility serves privately owned aircraft and provides pilot training through its flight school.
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Operating expenses of both airports are entirely supported by user fees. No property tax
dollars are used for capital improvements or for day-to-day operations.

The Milwaukee County Transit System (“MCTS”) is the County’s mass transit system and is
operated by the Department of Transportation. MCTS has an active bus fleet of 405 buses serving
60 regular service routes. Bus fares are collected on approximately 33.2 million passenger trips
annually (an amount that does not include passengers entering a bus using a transfer ticket).
Beginning in 2012, a bus replacement program will provide 145 new buses over the next several
years. Budgeted fare revenue and federal and state aid account for approximately 88 percent of
operating costs. MCTS also has a paratransit program for persons with disabilities.

The contract with the current transit management services provider was scheduled to conclude at
the end of 2014. The 2014 Budget included language stating unless the County Board approved a
contract for outside management and operation of the transit system by April 1, 2014, the policy of
Milwaukee County was to bring management and operation of transit in-house. However, it was
determined that the transit management services provider was a quasi-governmental corporation of
the County. This designation allowed the County to continue providing transit services with the
same transit management services provider without issuing an RFP or bringing management and
operation in-house.

C) COMMUNITY CHARACTERISTICS

Milwaukee County, located in southeastern Wisconsin on the Lake Michigan shoreline, was formed in 1835
when it was part of the Michigan Territory. Prior to that, the area had been settled by a variety of Native
American tribes, and was explored by French priests and traders as far back as 1674. The name
“Milwaukee” is generally believed to be derived from a Native American term meaning “good land.”

Today, Milwaukee County is, by population, the largest county in the State of Wisconsin and the 47" largest
in the United States with 949,741 residents. Milwaukee County is one of the few fully incorporated counties
in the United States and includes 19 municipalities that range from the large urban center in the City of
Milwaukee with 595,993 residents to small villages such as Bayside with a population of 4,380.

The County anchors the Greater Milwaukee Metropolitan Area, which has a population of 2,025,900 and
includes seven neighboring counties: Waukesha, Racine, Washington, Ozaukee, Dodge, Jefferson, and
Walworth.

Milwaukee County’s location on Lake Michigan, near the nation’s geographic center and in close proximity
to the Chicago metropolitan area, provides many logistical advantages. The County has a well-developed
arterial street and highway system, including four interstate highways; three major U.S. highways and
fifteen state highways. Major reconstruction on 1-94 from Milwaukee to Illinois, began in 2009 and is
scheduled for completion in 2021.

Freight service is provided to other metropolitan areas by numerous trucking establishments and two major
railroads, the Union Pacific and Canadian Pacific. Passenger rail service is available from Amtrak and
national and inter-city bus lines serve Milwaukee County. Milwaukee is also a major Great Lakes port.
Approximately 1.4 million tons of salt, 500,000 tons of cement and cement products, 600,000 tons of coal,
and more than 50,000 tons of specialty products come through the port on an annual basis. The port also
serves as the third largest exporter of grain in the Great Lakes. Ocean shipping services, inland barge service
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and major railroad services are complemented by the Milwaukee County freeway system, which allows for
direct access to and from the Port, alleviating congestion on local streets as well as contributing to safer
transportation of critical commodities. The Port berths the high-speed passenger and auto ferry that
connects Milwaukee with Muskegon, Michigan. The Lake Express ferry contributes not only to tourism
but adds another form of transportation for Milwaukee County residents. The commercial port supports
over 2,000 jobs and nets a profit between $1 million and $3 million annually.

Milwaukee County is also home to a number of colleges and universities, including Alverno College,
Cardinal Stritch University, Marquette University, the Medical College of Wisconsin, Milwaukee Area
Technical College, Milwaukee Institute of Art & Design, Milwaukee School of Engineering, Mount Mary
University, University of Wisconsin Milwaukee, and Wisconsin Lutheran College.

The January 1, 2014 population estimate for the County by the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration is 949,741. The five most recent United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of the
Census, decennial estimates for the County are presented in the table below.

Population Statistics

Year Population

2010 947,735
2000 940,164
1990 959,275
1980 964,988
1970 1,054,249

The Department of Workforce Development provides monthly estimates of the labor force, employment,
unemployment, and unemployment rates for the County and the State of Wisconsin. The Labor Force
Statistic table below provides the average annual estimates over the past five years.

Labor Force Statistics for Milwaukee County (Not Seasonally Adjusted)

Unemployment Rate

Labor Milwaukee State of
Year Force Employment Unemployment County Wisconsin
2014 480,920 447,273 33,647 7.0% 5.5%
2013 479,833 439,536 40,297 8.4% 6.8%
2012 476,448 435,440 41,008 8.6% 7.0%
2011 477,744 433,336 44,408 9.3% 7.8%
2010 476,448 428,833 47,615 10.0% 8.7%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development
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The Bureau of Economic Analysis provides estimates of per capita income data. Available data for the
County, State and United States over the past five years are presented in the following table.

Per Capita Personal Income

Milwaukee State of
Year County Wisconsin United States
2014 Not Available $44,585 Not Available
2013 $41,017 43,244 $44,765
2012 40,628 42,121 43,735
2011 39,390 40,648 42,298
2010 38,437 38,755 40,163
2009 38,422 38,364 39,357

According to the Milwaukee Metropolitan Association of Commerce Business Outlook Survey, Second
Quarter, 2015, 83 percent of area businesses surveyed expected sales increases in 2015, 71% forecast profit
gains and over half expect job growth in the calendar year.

Quarterly employment expectations are highly optimistic with fifty-nine percent of all businesses surveyed
predicting second-quarter, 2015 job gains for their local operations (vs. 2014°s second quarter). Companies
are over six times more likely to forecast employment gains for 2015’s second quarter than declines (9%).
Thirty-two percent see no change. The survey contains responses from 102 Milwaukee area firms,
employing more than 38,500 people.

D) FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Budgeting. The County has an executive budget process for the preparation of the annual operating and
capital budgets. The Fiscal Affairs Division of the Department of Administrative Services provides the
technical assistance required by the County Executive to review budget requests submitted by County
departments and agencies. The Fiscal Affairs Division compiles these requests, along with principal and
interest requirements, capital improvements, contingency requirements and the required tax levy. It reviews
areas where changes may be considered and transmits its findings to the County Executive. The County
Executive holds public hearings with respect to the requests, meets with departments and submits a
recommended budget to the County Board on or before October 1st of each year. Subsequent to the receipt
of the budget from the County Executive, the County Board’s Committee on Finance, Personnel and Audit
reviews the County Executive’s budget at public meetings. On the Monday following its regularly
scheduled meeting on the first Thursday in November, the County Board acts on the amendments and
recommendations submitted by the Committee on Finance, Personnel and Audit, as well as amendments
submitted by individual supervisors. The County Board adopts a final budget, subject to any vetoes by the
County Executive, and levies taxes based upon equalized property values.

Accounting Policies and Budgetary Control. Section 59.60(3m) of the Wisconsin Statutes specifies that
all County accounting and budgeting procedures shall comply with generally accepted accounting
principles. The Comptroller’s Office monitors the accounting policies and procedures followed by County
departments for compliance.
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The County’s accounting records for governmental and agency funds are maintained on a modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when measurable and available;
expenditures are recorded when the goods or services are received and the liabilities are incurred. The
County’s accounting records for proprietary funds and the pension trust funds of the County are maintained
on an accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when the services are
performed; expenditures are recorded when the goods or services are received and the liabilities are
incurred.

County management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that County assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition and assurance that the County financial records are free from material
misstatement and accurately account for the County’s assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived. The evaluation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary control is maintained by a formal appropriation and encumbrance/expenditure system.
Encumbrances are made against appropriations upon the release of a purchase order to a vendor. Expenses
are incurred upon the receipt of goods or services, and the matching to invoices and purchase orders. This
expenditure matching will reduce open encumbrances, related to the purchase order being paid. The
expenditures and remaining open encumbrances will reduce the available appropriation. New
encumbrances or expenses that would reduce the net appropriation balance below the authorized limits are
halted until additional appropriation authority is granted. As authorized by State Statute, open encumbered
purchase orders are carried forward at the end of the year by means of encumbrance reserves. These
reserves are restored to departmental appropriation accounts in the following year, thus allowing
departments to complete the purchase transaction, using prior year funded appropriations. Purchases for
the current year would be encumbered against new budgeted appropriations. Expenditures are then
recorded when the services or materials are received, which will release the encumbrance.

Every appropriation, except for an appropriation for capital expenditures or major repairs, lapses at
December 31 to the extent that it has not been expended or encumbered. An appropriation for a capital
expenditure or a major repair continues in force until the purpose for which it was made has been
accomplished or abandoned or three years pass without any expenditure or encumbrance. The County
Board of Supervisors approves carryovers recommended by the Comptroller and the Department of
Administrative Services.

Auditing. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes and Milwaukee County General Ordinances, the Milwaukee
County Comptroller, a publically elected official, is charged with performing all audit functions related to
Milwaukee County government. These audit functions are carried-out through the Office of the
Comptroller’s Audit Services Division. As required by State Statute, the Division conducts audits of
accounting and administrative controls, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness of operations and program results, in accordance with Generally Accepted
Government Audit Standards.

Additionally, the Audit Services Division contracts with an independent certified public accounting firm to
audit the County’s comprehensive annual financial report, containing its basic financial statements, as well
as its schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards. These audits are conducted in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States; Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
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Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the provisions of the State of Wisconsin State Single
Audit Guidelines.

Capital Planning. The County is continuing the development of an inventory of all County capital assets
and a system to monitor the condition of capital assets and establish appropriate replacement or
reconstruction schedules for the County’s infrastructure. This information assists County departments in
developing comprehensive long-range planning.

Debt Administration. In 1994, the County established new policies and revised existing policies that
directly and indirectly affect its borrowing practices, including development of guidelines for maximum
debt burdens and maximum maturity and modifications to the procedures for accepting competitive bids.

The County Board has also adopted policies limiting the amount of corporate purpose bonds issued by the
County to finance capital projects. Under this policy, corporate purpose bond issuance is limited to an
increase of no more than three percent over the principal amount of the preceding year’s issue. Although
this bonding cap policy only applies to corporate purpose bonds that finance the Capital Improvements
Program, the Comptroller’s Office includes the bond issues that result in a County debt obligation.

In 2014, the County added a new policy for its Debt Service Reserve. The policy states that the County
will seek to build and maintain a minimum balance of $10 million in the Debt Service Reserve.

The County Board authorized and borrowed significantly more than what would have been allowed under
its bonding cap policy during 2009 and 2010 in order to accelerate projects previously scheduled to occur
during the four-year period of 2009 through 2012. As a result, the County issued general obligation debt
for four years of capital projects during a two-year period (2009 and 2010) and did not issue general
obligation debt for capital projects during the next two-year period (2011 and 2012). This allowed the
County to maintain its bonding cap policy in aggregate during the four-year time period while accelerating
the capital project plan to take advantage of certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act and provide a local economic stimulus.

Wisconsin Statutes limit the County’s direct general obligation borrowing to an amount equivalent to five
percent of the equalized valuation of taxable property. At December 31, 2014, the County had $685.0
million of net general obligation debt outstanding, representing 23.5 percent of the $2.9 billion debt limit.
The debt limit is based upon equalized value of County property of $58.3 billion.

Approximately 73.0 percent of the County’s general-obligation debt will be retired within ten years. The
County’s general-purpose obligations do not include revenue bonds issued by the County with respect to
the airports. For 2014, total debt of the County, which includes general purpose and Airport revenue bond
obligations, was $911.3 million. As of December 31, 2014, approximately $221.1 million or 24.6 percent
of the County’s outstanding general purpose and revenue debt is for the Airports. Pursuant to the lease
agreements with the airlines, signatory airlines are obligated to pay all principal and accrued interest
payments for debt issued on behalf of the Airports.

Milwaukee County’s ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch Ratings,
respectively, have assigned the ratings of “Aa2 /AA / AA+” to the Bonds. A rating reflects only the view
of the rating agency, from whom an explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained. The
County is not obligated to maintain the current ratings on the Bonds, and there is no assurance that ratings
will continue for any given period of time or that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely
if, in the judgment of the rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or
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withdrawal could have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. The County and the Co-Financial
Advisors will undertake no responsibility to oppose any revision or withdrawal of such ratings.

Moody’s Investors Service Standard & Poor’s Fitch IBCA
Aa2 AA AA+

Investment Policy. The County may purchase investment securities as allowed by Section 66.0603(1m)
of the Wisconsin Statutes and Milwaukee County ordinance at prevailing market rates. To the extent
possible, the County attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash-flow requirements. In the
absence of individual security maturity limitations specified in the Wisconsin Statutes, the County does not
directly invest in securities maturing more than ten years from the date of purchase.

Future Fiscal Outlook. The Comptroller monitors the County’s five-year forecast and provides an annual
update to the County Board and County Executive each spring. In addition, the Comptroller may update
the forecast throughout the year depending on events that may impact the long-term sustainability, such as
the State’s Biennial Budget. The initial 2009 model forecasted a structural deficit of $159 million by 2015,
assuming no structural changes. The updated 2014 model shows significant improvement for the 2015
forecasted structural deficit, despite the impact of the recession. A comparison of the two forecasts is shown
below.

2009 Model 2014 Model
Year (Millions) (Millions)
2015 (159) (32)
2016 (179) (48)
2017 (201) (65)
2018 N/A (76)
2019 N/A (94)

Because expenditure growth is anticipated to outpace revenue growth for the next five years, the County
will continue to have a structural deficit in the forecast period absent any new policy changes. The ongoing
drivers of the structural deficit continue to be personnel costs and stagnant revenue. Considering that
personnel costs comprise nearly 40 percent of the County’s total expenditures, it is reasonable that increases
in personnel costs together with minimal revenue growth will continue to create a structural imbalance
within the County. However, a significant portion of the improvement in the structural deficit is due to
refined assumptions, while substantial changes in personnel and fringe benefits have also played a dominant
role.

Since 2006, the County has taken actions to reduce its long-term structural deficit through wage and benefit
modifications. The actions taken by the County have included the movement to a self-insured health plan,
wage freezes, and changes to healthcare plan design including implementation of a single PPO plan and
increased deductibles and co-payments, changes in coordination with Medicare, reduced pension benefits,
and enactment of an employee pension contribution. Changes in these areas have significantly reduced the
future costs of these benefits in turn reducing the County’s structural deficit.

Major changes to healthcare and pension benefits have largely been possible due to 2011 Wisconsin Acts

10 and 32 (“Acts 10 and 32”). Prior to Acts 10 and 32, the County was required to negotiate any wage or
benefit change with represented employees. Due to modifications to collective bargaining in Acts 10 and
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32, the County is now only permitted to bargain over base wages (limited to the rate of inflation) with the
unions that are not related to public safety. The County is still required to bargain over most wage and
benefit issues with the Milwaukee County Firefighters Association and the Milwaukee Deputy Sheriffs’
Association with the exception of healthcare plan design (deductibles, copays, etc.) which is no longer
subject to collective bargaining. Acts 10 and 32 also require that employees, except members of public
safety unions, contribute one-half of the actuarial determined annual required contribution (“ARC”).
Similar employee pension contributions have been negotiated with public safety worker unions.

The County has successfully implemented a new healthcare plan design that shares more costs with its
employees and retirees due to Acts 10 and 32. In addition, the County has largely been able to implement
all of these changes for its public safety workers, with the exception of the contribution to health plan
premiums, which is still considered a negotiable item for public safety unions. Major changes include a
shift from multiple plan designs to a single PPO plan design. Employees and retirees are required to pay
annual deductibles, copays and coinsurance. In addition, the County has implemented a Medicare carve-
out coverage plan and an Employer Group Waiver Plan (“EGWP”) for prescription drug coverage for
retirees and eliminated the Medicare Part B premium reimbursement for all employees not yet retired.

The County has also been able to reduce its pension liability, in part due to changes that resulted from Acts
10 and 32. Almost all employees are required to contribute one-half of the ARC to the Employees’
Retirement System (“ERS”). The member contribution requirement is determined annually by the County’s
actuary and is collected through an employee payroll deduction. Although this issue remains a negotiable
item for public safety unions, as of this date, all public safety unions have agreed to a pension contribution
of one-half the ARC. Other changes to the pension benefits include an increase in the normal retirement
age from age 60 to age 64, a reduction in the pension multiplier from 2.0 percent to 1.6 percent for most
employees and a modification to the backdrop pension benefit.

As a result of Acts 10 and 32, and the subsequent changes to healthcare and pension provisions for
Milwaukee County employees, legal challenges were brought against both the State and the County. The
lower courts both issued opinions as to the legality of Acts 10 and 32, and the parties appealed the decisions
to Federal Appeals Court and to State Appeals Court. Both the Federal Appeals Court and Wisconsin
Supreme Court have ruled in favor of the State, upholding the legality of Acts 10 and 32.

Several legal challenges were brought against the County regarding the healthcare plan design changes
imposed on retirees, the elimination of the Medicare Part B premium reimbursement for future retirees, the
reduction in the pension multiplier from 2.0 percent to 1.6 percent for most employees, the modification of
the backdrop pension benefit and Rule of 75 for certain AFSCME-represented employees. Final rulings
have been issued in favor of the County on all but the Rule of 75 case which is still pending in circuit court.

Property Tax Rate Limit. Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes imposes a limit on property tax
levies by cities, villages, towns and counties. No city, village, town or county is permitted to increase its
tax levy by a percentage that exceeds its valuation factor (which is defined as a percentage equal to the
greater of the percentage change in the political subdivision’s January 1st equalized value due to new
construction less improvements removed or zero percent). The base amount in any year to which the levy
limit applies is the actual levy for the immediately preceding year. This levy limitation is an overall limit,
applying to levies for operations as well as for other purposes.

A political subdivision that did not levy its full allowable levy in the prior year can carry forward the

difference between the allowable levy and the actual levy, up to a maximum of 1.5% of the prior year's
actual levy. The use of carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved by a majority vote of the
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political subdivision’s governing body (except in the case of towns) if the amount of carry forward levy
adjustment is less than or equal to 0.5% and by a super majority vote of the political subdivision’s governing
body (three-quarters vote if the governing body is comprised of five or more members, two-thirds vote if
the governing body is comprised of fewer than five members) (except in the case of towns) if the amount
of the carry forward levy adjustment is greater than 0.5% up to the maximum increase of 1.5%.

Special provisions are made with respect to property taxes levied to pay general obligation debt service.
Those are described below. In addition, the statute provides for certain other exclusions from and
adjustments to the tax levy limit. Among the items excluded from the limit are amounts levied for any
revenue shortfall for debt service on a revenue bond issued under Section 66.0621. Among the adjustments
permitted is an adjustment applicable when a tax increment district terminates, which allows an amount
equal to the prior year’s allowable levy multiplied by 50% of the political subdivision’s percentage growth
due to the district’s termination.

With respect to general obligation debt service, the following provisions are made:

o If a political subdivision’s levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including debt
service on debt issued or reissued to fund or refund outstanding obligations of the political
subdivision and interest on outstanding obligations of the political subdivision, on debt originally
authorized before July 1, 2005, is less in the current year than in the previous year, the political
subdivision is required to reduce its levy limit in the current year by the amount of the difference
between the previous year’s levy and the current year’s levy unless the political subdivision does
not utilize the “unused levy” provision of the local levy limit statute.

e For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the preceding year
is less than the amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is increased by the
difference between the two amounts.

e The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general obligation debt
authorized on or after July 1, 2005.

E) OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit

The accounting firm of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP was engaged to perform an audit of the basic
financial statements and to issue a report on internal controls and compliance with laws and regulations for
the County. The auditors' report on the basic financial statements is included in this comprehensive annual
financial report.

The selection of the independent audit firm was administered by the Office of the Comptroller — Audit
Division. A request for proposal was issued to solicit proposals from eligible firms. The proposals received
by the County were reviewed and ranked by the committee. The County Board and County Executive then
approved the contract of the successful firm.

The audit is performed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. The audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
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made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditors concluded based upon the audit, that there is a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
opinion that the County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 are fairly
presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The independent auditors’ report
is presented as the first component of the financial section of the CAFR.

The accounting firm of Coleman & Williams, Ltd. has issued reports on its audit of Federal and State grants
known as the Single Audit Report. The Single Audit Report has been issued under separate cover.

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the County for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”) for the year ended December 31, 2013. This is the thirty-fifth
(December 31, 1979 through December 31, 2013) consecutive year that the County has received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated service of the entire
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HUMaN RESOUICES .......ccovviieiie e siee e Director.......cccoevvievineieeceeseeen, Kerry Mitchell
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List of Principal Officials and Committees
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ELECTED

COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS - (By District Number)

1- Theodore A. Lipscomb, Sr. 10- Vacant

2- Khalif Rainey 11- Mark Borkowski

3- Gerry P. Broderick 12- Peggy Romo West
4- Marina Dimitrijevic — (Chair) 13- Willie Johnson, Jr.
5- Martin Wedde 14- Jason Haas

6- James Schmitt 15- Vacant

7- Michael Mayo, Sr. 16- John F. Weishan, Jr.
8- Patricia Jursik 17- Anthony Staskunas
9- Steve F. Taylor 18- Deanna Alexander

COUNTY BOARD STANDING COMMITTEES

The Board Chairperson appoints the chair and members of the seven standing committees of the Milwaukee
County Board. Each Committee is comprised of a Committee Chair or Co-Chairs, 6 - 7 members and 2
staff.

e The Economic and Community Development Committee oversees the administration of federal,
state and local housing programs in the County, including the Urban Community Development
Block Grant Program. This Committee decides matters pertaining to economic development of
Milwaukee County, including the best disposition of County properties. It also makes decisions on
the Research Park and the Airport Business Park.

e The Finance, Personnel and Audit Committee reviews County budget matters, taxation and
insurance matters. Audit reports are reviewed to ensure other County departments implement
program improvements and cost-saving recommendations of the County Board. This committee
also includes employee relations, reclassification, compensation and conditions of employment of
County personnel and officers. Members set policy for the Civil Service Commission and
administer the County Employee Merit Award program.

o The Health and Human Needs Committee is responsible for policies related to the Department
of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Mental Health Division, Emergency Medical Services
(paramedics), Family Care, and the Children’s Court Center. The Committee also reviews policies
relating to the Office for Persons with Disabilities and monitors the implementation of the
Wisconsin Works program (W-2).

e The Intergovernmental Relations Committee reviews proposed federal, state and local
legislation affecting the County and makes recommendations determining the County’s policy on
these matters. On special occasions, members of the Committee appear before Congress, the State
Legislature and governing bodies of other municipalities to support the County Board’s policies.
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e The Judiciary, Safety and General Services Committee considers legal questions concerning
lawsuits or claims by or against the County, claims for workers compensation, personal injuries
and property damage. Members set policy for County Funded State Court Services, Family Court
Commissioners, Jury Commission, Register in Probate, Election Commission, County Clerk,
Register of Deeds, Legal Resource Center, Sheriff, Medical Examiner, Safety Commission, District
Attorney, House of Correction, Department of Child Support Enforcement, Corporation Counsel
and Emergency Management.

e The Parks, Energy and Environment Committee is responsible for all matters concerning
County parks and parkways. Members set policy for the Parks Department, organized recreation,
cultural activities, arts, the University Extension program, and Zoo park services. Members have
jurisdiction over matters concerning the conservation of all uses of energy and make
recommendations relating to conservation of air, water, energy and all other resources.

e The Transportation, Public Works and Transit Committee is responsible for the mission of the
Department of Transportation, including the construction and maintenance of County highways,
bridges, airports and public structures. Members discuss all matters pertaining to the policy of mass
transit and the Milwaukee County Transit System, including fares, service routes and capital
improvements. The Committee also discusses all matters under its jurisdiction pertaining to
railroads and public utilities in the County.

Some matters coming before the County Board have a significant policy impact or a unique set of
circumstances which overlap specific committee jurisdiction (for example, the closing of a major County
facility). On such occasions, the Committee of the Whole will meet at the call of the County Board
Chairperson. All 18 supervisors are members of the Committee of the Whole.
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Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
777 E. Wisconsin Ave., 32" Floor
Milwaukee, W1 53202-5313

tel 414 777 5500

fax 414 777 5555

bakertilly.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Milwaukee
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County of Milwaukee's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Milwaukee County War Memorial, Inc., the Marcus Center for the Performing Arts,
and the Milwaukee County Research Park Corporation, which represent 44 percent, 48 percent and 60 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the discretely presented component units. Those
statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for the Milwaukee County War Memorial, Inc., the Marcus Center for the
Performing Arts, and the Milwaukee County Research Park Corporation, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. The financial statements of the Milwaukee Public Museum, Inc., the Milwaukee County War
Memorial, Inc., the Marcus Center for the Performing Arts, and the Milwaukee County Research Park
Corporation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control over financial reporting relevant to the County of
Milwaukee's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the County of Milwaukee's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

4 an independent member of

BAKER TILLY
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To the Board of Supervisors
County of Milwaukee

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2014 and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1.E, the County of Milwaukee adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, GASB Statement No. 69,
Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, effective January 1, 2014. Our opinions are not
modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedules of funding progress and the schedules of employer contributions as
listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit for the year ended December 31, 2014 was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the County of Milwaukee's basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and other supplementary information for the
year ended December 31, 2014 as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and other
supplementary information are fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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County of Milwaukee

Other Matters (continued)

Supplementary Information (continued)

We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the basic financial statements of the County of Milwaukee as of and for the year ended December 31,
2013 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated July 31, 2014, which contained
unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and other
supplementary information for the year ended December 31, 2013 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the 2013 financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the 2013 basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those
financial statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules and other supplementary information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended December 31,
2013.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County of Milwaukee's basic financial statements. The "Introductory Section" and "Statistical
Section” are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 31, 2015 on our
consideration of the County of Milwaukee's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the County of Milwaukee's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Mwa:&") y/'w(ow%w%, LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
July 31, 2015
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)

The County of Milwaukee’s comprehensive annual financial report provides a narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. Please read
it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the County’s basic financial
statements following this section. All dollar amounts are expressed in thousands unless otherwise
indicated.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Highlights for Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the County as a whole using the
economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The County’s assets and deferred outflow of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflow
of resources by $698,444 on a government-wide basis as of December 31, 2014. The unrestricted
net position of the County is a deficit of ($316,226).

For the fiscal year, program and general revenues of the County’s governmental activities totaled
$1,080,524. Expenses totaled $1,028,461 including transfers out of $18,281.

For 2014, revenues of the County’s business-type activities are $316,254 including transfers in of
$18,281. Expenses totaled $264,959.

Highlights for Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the County’s most significant funds
using the current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting.

As of December 31, 2014, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $237,304 as compared to $213,235 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The County’s enterprise funds had combined net position of $385,703 as of December 31, 2014,
compared to $334,408 as of December 31, 2013.

In November 2014, the County issued General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2014A
in the amount of $39,240, to finance various general capital projects in the County.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial
statements. The financial section of this annual report consists of four parts: (1) management’s discussion
and analysis (presented here), (2) basic financial statements that include the government-wide financial
statements, fund financial statements and notes to the financial statements, (3) required supplementary
information, and (4) other supplementary information.

The County’s basic financial statements consist of two kinds of statements each with a different view of
the County’s finances. The government-wide financial statements provide both long- and short-term
information about the County’s overall financial status. The fund statements focus on major aspects of
the County’s operations, reporting those operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.
The basic financial statements also include notes to explain information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data.

The statements and notes are followed by required supplementary information that contains the trend data
pertaining to the retirement systems.  Directly following this information is other supplementary
information with combining and individual fund statements and schedules to provide details about the
governmental, internal service, and fiduciary funds.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, which consist of two statements, are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of Milwaukee County’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The first government-wide statement, the statement of net position, presents information on all of the
County’s assets and deferred outflow of resources less liabilities, and deferred inflow of resources,
resulting in the net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The second government-wide statement, the statement of activities, presents information showing how
the County’s net position changed during 2014. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for not only current uses of cash flow but also for
items that will result in cash flows in a future fiscal period (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused
paid benefits).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Milwaukee County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (referred to as "governmental activities")
from functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (referred to as "business-type activities™). The governmental activities of Milwaukee County
include: Legislative, Executive and Staff; Courts and Judiciary; General Governmental Services; Public
Safety; Public Works and Highways; Health and Human Services; and Parks, Recreation and Culture.
The business-type activities of Milwaukee County include the Airports and the Transit System.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)

The government-wide financial statements include the County’s governmental and business-type
activities (collectively referred to as the “primary government”) and also the legally separate entities
(known as *“discretely presented component units”) for which the County is financially accountable.
Together, the primary government and its discretely presented component units are referred to as the
reporting entity. The Milwaukee Public Museum, Inc., the Milwaukee County War Memorial, Inc., the
Marcus Center for the Performing Arts, and the Milwaukee County Research Park Corporation are the
County’s discretely presented component units. Financial information is presented separately on each
financial statement for governmental activities, business-type activities, primary government and
component units.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 53-56 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Milwaukee County, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of Milwaukee County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental funds’ balance sheet and the governmental funds’ statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The County maintains ten individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the debt service fund, and the capital projects fund, which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation called non-major governmental funds. Individual fund data for each of the non-
major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the Supplementary
Information section. These non-major governmental funds are all special revenue funds of the County.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, debt service fund, and capital
projects funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate
budgetary compliance in the basic financial statements. Budgetary comparisons for other funds with
adopted budgets as well as a general fund budgetary comparison by department is also included in the
Supplementary Information section.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 57-61 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the fiscal activities
of the Airports and the Transit System. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds
to account for its public works services, information management services, and its risk management
activities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions;
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The financial statements of the proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-
wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Airports and the Transit System, which are considered to be major funds of the
County. Conversely, all internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is also included
in the Supplementary Information section.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 62-66 of this report.
Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government or
are custodial in nature. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of these funds are not available to support the County’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds: the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The County’s fiduciary funds consist of a pension trust fund and agency funds. The pension trust fund is
used to account for the assets held in trust by the County for the employees and beneficiaries of its
defined pension plan - the Employees’ Retirement System and the OBRA Retirement System. The
agency funds are used to account for monies received, held, and disbursed on behalf of the State of
Wisconsin Court System located in the County, fee collections, as mandated by the State, social service
clients, and certain other local governments.
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 67-68 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to fully understand the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes can be found on pages 72-161 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the County’s and Transit System’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits and other post-employment benefits to its employees.

The required supplementary information can be found on pages 164-167 of this report.

Supplementary Information

Individual fund schedules are provided for budgetary comparisons of the major funds. In addition,
various individual and combining fund financial statements and schedules are provided for non-major
governmental funds, internal service funds and fiduciary funds.

The supplementary information can be found on pages 170-184 of this report.

Other Supplementary Information

Separate financial statements — Balance Sheets, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, and Statements of Cash Flows — are presented for the Milwaukee County Family Care Fund
program.

The other supplementary information can be found on pages 186-188 of this report.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Government-wide financial statements are provided as part of the approach mandated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB sets the uniform standards for presenting
government financial reports. Complete comparative information is provided in this the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis.

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In 2014,

assets and deferred outflow of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflow of resources by $698,444
at the close of the fiscal year. The County’s net position increased by $103,358 during the fiscal year.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Net Position
(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Primary Government
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Current and Other Assets $ 704,889 $ 680,288 $ 148,277 $ 178,427 $ 853,166 $ 858,715
Long-Term Assets 434,939 433,822 56 1,955 434,995 435,777
Capital Assets 653,844 650,978 546,993 479,457 1,200,837 1,130,435
Total Assets 1,793,672 1,765,088 695,326 659,839 2,488,998 2,424,927
Deferred Outflow of Resources 15,836 18,087 162 130 15,998 18,217
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources $ 1,809,508 $ 1,783,175 $ 695,488 $ 659,969 $ 2,504,996 $ 2,443,144
Current Liabilities $ 235,866 $ 257,670 $ 52,309 $ 55,398 $ 288,175 $ 313,068
Long-Term Liabilities 967,423 974,252 257,476 270,163 1,224,899 1,244,415
Total Liabilities 1,203,289 1,231,922 309,785 325,561 1,513,074 1,557,483
Deferred Inflow of Resources 293,478 290,575 - - 293,478 290,575
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 396,649 372,792 345,437 299,463 742,086 672,255
Restricted 232,751 209,509 39,833 34,453 272,584 243,962
Unrestricted (deficit) (316,659) (321,623) 433 492 (316,226) (321,131)
Total Net Position 312,741 260,678 385,703 334,408 698,444 595,086
Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net
Position $ 1,809,508 $ 1,783,175 $ 695,488 $ 659,969 $ 2,504,996 $ 2,443,144

The largest portion of the County’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, land
improvements, buildings, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure, net of depreciation and amortization),
plus any unspent capital bond funds less the outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. As of
December 31, 2014, the net investment in capital assets is $742,086, an increase of $69,831 from the
previous year. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Indirectly, the depreciation of capital assets is an expense for proprietary funds and therefore, as an
expense, is available to be reimbursed through user fees of those funds.

Restricted net position as of December 31, 2014 totaled $272,584. These assets are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used, some of which include grant-related restrictions and debt service
restrictions. The airport passenger facility charges (“PFC”) revenue is restricted for airport bond
repayment and future airport capital needs.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

Unrestricted net position represents the remaining amount of net position that is neither related to
capital assets nor is restricted for specific purposes. As of December 31, 2014 the unrestricted net
position balance is ($316,226). Unrestricted net position increased by $4,905 in 2014.

Statement of Activities

The following table provides the summary of the changes in net position for the primary government
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013:

County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Summary of Changes in Net Position
(In Thousands)

Gowvernmental Business-type Primary Government
Activities Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Rewvenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 439109 $ 444537 $ 134350 $ 134387 $ 573459 $ 578924
Operating Grants and Contributions 192,671 191,048 91,780 88,342 284,451 279,390
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,590 3,979 71,114 37,362 73,704 41,341
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 284,461 283,631 - - 284,461 283,631
Sales Taxes 67,826 65,488 - - 67,826 65,488
Intergovernmental Revenues not

Related to Specific Programs 36,797 34,443 - - 36,797 34,443
Investment Income 7 478 729 332 1,506 810
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 12,696 36,315 - 123 12,696 36,438
Other Revenue 43,597 46,362 - - 43,597 46,362
Total Revenues 1,080,524 1,106,281 297,973 260,546 1,378,497 1,366,827

Expenses:
Legislative, Executive, and Staff 46,266 49,832 - - 46,266 49,832
Courts and Judiciary 51,904 50,502 - - 51,904 50,502
General Governmental Services 12,980 12,165 - - 12,980 12,165
Public Safety 143,774 147,637 - - 143,774 147,637
Public Works and Highways 104,079 79,849 - - 104,079 79,849
Human Services 551,239 556,149 - - 551,239 556,149
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 76,644 76,960 - - 76,644 76,960
Interest 23,294 34,545 - - 23,294 34,545
Airport - - 98,006 89,720 98,006 89,720
Transit - - 166,953 163,844 166,953 163,844
Total Expenses 1,010,180 1,007,639 264,959 253,564 1,275,139 1,261,203
Change in Net Position Before Transfers 70,344 98,642 33,014 6,982 103,358 105,624
Transfers (18,281) (26,842) 18,281 26,842 - -
Change in Net Position 52,063 71,800 51,295 33,824 103,358 105,624
Net Position - Beginning of the Year 260,678 188,878 334,408 300,584 595,086 489,462
Net Position - End of the Year $ 312,741 $ 260678 $ 385703 $ 334408 $ 698444 $ 595,086
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

Governmental Activities

The Governmental activities of Milwaukee County include Legislative, Executive and Staff, Courts and
Judiciary, General Governmental Services, Public Safety, Public Works and Highways, Health and Human
Services, and Parks, Recreation and Culture. The first graph indicates the revenue sources; the second
graph compares the expenses and program revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

2014 Actual Revenues compared to 2013 Actual Revenues

Actual Revenues for the County’s governmental activities are $1,080,524 for the fiscal year 2014,
representing a decrease of $25,757, or 2.3%, from fiscal year 2013. The various sources of revenue for
fiscal year 2014 are stated as a percentage of total revenues in the pie graph on the previous page.

Charges for services constitute the largest source of County revenues, amounting to $439,109, a decrease
of $5,428 from 2013. Charges for services represent collections from those who directly benefit from
County services. The largest decrease is in the area of Human Services.

Operating grants and contributions revenue of $192,671 increased by $1,623 from 2013. Operating
grants and contributions generally represent federal and state grant revenue with the majority supporting
health and human service programs.

Capital grants and contributions decreased from $3,979 in 2013, to $2,590 in 2014. Both Parks and
Highways have projects that are funded with capital grants.

Property tax revenue of $284,461 increased by $830 from 2013; property tax revenue as a percent of
total governmental activity revenues increased by 0.7% from the prior year. Caps on increases in levy
rates have limited the increase each year.

Sales tax revenue increased from $65,488 to $67,826 in 2014 as a result of a slightly stronger consumer
spending than in 2013,

Intergovernmental revenues, not related to specific programs, increased by $2,354 in 2014 to $36,797.
Investment income increased by $299 in 2014 to $777.

In 2014, there is a gain on the sale of capital assets of $12,696 related to the sale of land to the State as
part of the 194/145 Zoo Interchange reconstruction project, as well as the UWM Innovation land sale.

Other revenue decreased in 2014 by $2,765 to $43,597.

2014 Actual Expenses compared to 2013 Actual Expenses

Actual total expenses for all of the County’s governmental activities for the fiscal year 2014 are
$1,010,180 representing an increase of $2,541 or 0.3% from 2013. Total expenses compared to program
revenues by activity are shown in the bar graph on the previous page.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

The net increase in total expenses is due to an increase in expense of $24,230 in the Public Works and
Highways departmental area. This increase is offset by decreases in other departmental areas, including
Legislative Executive and Staff, Human Services, Interest and Public Safety.

Current economic conditions have required the County to continue cost savings measures that have been
implemented over the last several years. The following are some of the measures continued in 2014 to
control costs:

e Elimination of departmental positions due to downsizing and privatization of services

e Changes to departmental policies so as to limit overtime usage and holding positions vacant in
order to achieve departmental cost savings

o Elimination of certain wage step increases

e Increase in employee contributions to healthcare plans for certain union members and non-
represented positions

e Increase in employee co-pays and deductibles to reduce County health costs for both active and
retired employees

e Employee contributions to pension costs for certain union and non-represented positions

e Capping the amount of sick time that can be accrued to 960 hours for certain union and non-
represented employees

e Elimination of the payout and/or health care credit at retirement for any sick time accrued after
June 24, 2012 for certain union and non-represented employees

¢ Departmental review of outside services and suppliers to achieve more cost effective pricing

e Upgrading or replacing, when possible, systems that are outdated or not energy efficient
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities consist of the Airports and Transit / Para-Transit System. The first graph indicates
the revenue source for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. The second graph compares the
expenses and program revenues for the Airports and Transit System.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (cont.)

In 2014, the Airports’ revenue including fees charged to airlines for use of the airport and fees received
from ancillary services of the airports fell short of its annual operating costs by $340. Charges for
Services revenue from the Airport increased by $1,040 (or 1.2%) and operating expenses increased by
$6,618 (or 8.2%) over the prior year. Total Passengers at General Mitchell International Airport
increased 0.5% from 6.5 million passengers in 2013 to 6.6 million passengers in 2014. Operating grants
and contributions are negligible for the Airports.

The Transit System requires operating assistance from the State, Federal and County government to
balance its revenues and expenses. Total County operating support, reflected as operating transfers, for
the Transit System is $29,945 for fiscal year 2014, which is an increase of $2,062 (or 7.4%) from the
prior year. Total state and federal grants for the Transit System are $91,587 for 2014, which is an increase
of $3,480 or 3.9% from 2013. Direct support from users of the Transit System is $43,352 (26.1% of total
operating expenses) for 2014, which is a decrease of $1,532 from 2013. Transit expenses totaled $166,151,
which is an increase of $3,477 from the prior year. The operator of the Transit System continues to institute
cost savings measures to reduce operating costs. The Transit System has continued its purchase of more
fuel-efficient buses to reduce fuel and maintenance costs, limited the number of bus routes, and has
required employees to contribute more for health and pension costs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing
requirements.

As of December 31, 2014, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$237,304. The restricted fund balance consists of $5,000 for 2016 appropriations, $5,000 for 2015
appropriations, $40,238 for debt service, $67,121 for commitments (including construction), $35,358 for
Milwaukee County Family Care, $14,072 for delinquent property taxes, $185 for Housing, $27,398 for
the Airport, $7,016 for Administrative Services, $1,118 for the Zoo, $1,532 for the Parks, $99 for the
Persons with Disabilities Division, $17,855 for the Behavioral Health Division and $9,851 for the Fleet
and Facilities Divisions. The remainder of the Fund Balance consists of $2,739 of committed funds for
economic development and $2,722 of non-spendable funds for inventories.

The general fund is the main operating fund of the County and provides a majority of the day to day
funding. It is used to account for and report all financial resources, except those resources required to be
accounted for and reported in another fund. The fund balance of the general fund increased 8.3% from
$75,062 to $81,293 in 2014. This change is due to an increase in the Behavioral Health Division from $0
in 2013 to $8,483 in 2014, offset by a slight decrease in Commitments from $10,181 in 2013 to $7,734 in
2014.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS (cont.)

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $40,238 all of which is restricted for the payment of debt
service. In 2014, the debt service reserve increased by $5,274 or 15.1%, primarily as a result of a transfer
in of a portion of the County’s 2014 net excess of revenues over expenditures.

The capital projects fund balance is $59,387 all of which is restricted for commitments made on capital
projects in progress. The net increase in the capital projects fund during the current year is $11,111.

Proprietary funds

At the end of 2014, the unrestricted net position of the two major funds, Airports and the Transit System,
totaled $433. The total net position of these same two major funds is $385,703 at the end of 2014,
compared to $334,408 at the end of 2013. The total net position for the Airports increased by $50,925
while the total net position for the Transit System increased by $370. Restricted Assets of the Airport
are required per debt covenants associated with revenue bonds issued for capital improvements.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Expenditures and other uses exceeded revenues and other sources by $5,931 in the General Fund for
the year ended December 31, 2014. This table is based on a budgetary basis presentation. The
budgetary basis of actual revenues and expenditures presented on the prior page differs from the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance due to the inclusion of encumbrances
of $12,180 in expenditures, pension and other expenditures of ($18) and transfers to component units of
($6,381).
County of Milwaukee, Wisconsin
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position - Budgetary Basis
General Fund
For the Year Ending December 31, 2014
(In Thousands)

Original Final

Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues and Other Sources
Intergovernmental Revenue $ 223,448 $ 232,356 $ 226,512 $ (5,844)
Taxes 339,777 339,776 344,777 5,001
Charges for Services 416,988 416,833 413,692 (3,141)
Other 17,473 37,473 33,246 (4,227)
Total 997,686 1,026,438 1,018,227 (8,211)
Expenditures and Other Uses
Expenditures 901,953 940,935 902,908 38,027
Transfers 100,733 90,503 121,250 (30,747)
Total 1,002,686 1,031,438 1,024,158 7,280
Change in Fund Balance $ (5,000) $ (5,000) $ (5,931) $ (931)
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (cont.)

2014 Actual Revenues compared to 2014 Final Budget

e Actual General Fund revenues are $8,211, or 0.8%, below the final budgeted amount.

Property taxes were $1,741 or 0.6%, above the final budgeted amount while sales taxes are
$3,260, or 5.7%, above the final budgeted amount.

e Charges for services are $3,141, or 0.8%, below the final budgeted amount; fines and forfeits are
$1,466, or 46.6%, below the final budgeted amount; and licenses and permits are $153, or 24.3%
above the final budgeted amount.

Investment income is $1,718, or 89.4% below the final budget amount.

e Other revenues are $1,196, or 3.8% below the final budget amount.

2014 Actual Expenditures compared to 2014 Final Budget

Actual General Fund expenditures (before transfers), are $38,027 or 4.0%, below the final budgeted
amount for fiscal year 2014. This is primarily due to:

e Expenditure surplus due to unfilled positions, fewer payments for unemployment compensation,
wages, overtime, fringe benefits, services and commaodities.

Lower than anticipated employee medical costs.

Department review of outside services and suppliers to achieve more cost effective pricing.

Lower than anticipated client counts in Human Services.

Program income partially offsetting program expense causing an expense variance in Human
Services.

Budget Transfers

Transfers to Other Funds represent amounts transferred to other funds such as debt service, capital
projects, internal service funds, and transit. When revenues fall short of expenditures in each of these
funds, the County uses non-departmental revenues such as property tax and state shared revenue to
provide financial support to these other funds. The revenue is allocated through an operating transfer
from the General Fund.

There are three basic reasons for variances between the original budget and the amended budget:

e carryover of encumbrances from the prior year
o carryover of capital outlay and the associated revenue from the prior year
o fund transfer requests from departments

The carryover of encumbrances from the prior year process is automatic each year, and is authorized by
Wisconsin State Statute and Milwaukee County Ordinance. The carryover of capital outlay and the
associated revenue is also authorized by state statute and is approved by the County Board on a preliminary
basis in March and finalized in April. During the fiscal year, the County Board receives fund transfer
requests from departments. These transfer requests are reviewed and approved by the County Board.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS (cont.)

The difference between original budget revenue of $997,686 and final budget revenue of $1,026,438 is an
increase of $28,752. The difference between original budget expenses of $901,953 and final budget
expenses of $940,935 is an increase of $38,982. The major budget transfers of $1,000 or greater during
2014 are listed below:

o Legislative, Executive and Staff

(0]

Total payments of $7,940 were received for the sale of County Grounds land. This resulted in
an increase of $4,045 in revenues and expenditures for various projects and programs.
Additionally, $215 was used for capital projects, $10 has been appropriated for contingencies,
and the remaining $3,670 is held in a reserve for economic development.

An increase of $2,000 in revenues and expenditures resulting from a fund transfer from the
Appropriation for Contingencies to the Risk Management Division due to significantly higher
than anticipated worker’s compensation costs.

An increase of $3,500 in revenues and expenditures resulting from a fund transfer into the
Appropriation for Contingencies. The County received reimbursement from the State for fire-
related costs from the Courthouse Fire.

e Public Works and Highways

(0]

An increase of $10,200 in revenues and expenditures for the Airport to enhance the current
security surveillance system.

An increase of $3,000 in the debt service reserve and expenditures resulting from the sale
general obligation bonds. Proceeds from the bond sale will be used to upgrade the County’s
radio system and consoles with digital equipment.

An increase of $8,500 in revenues and expenditures resulting from the sale of land to the State
for the Zoo Freeway Interchange Reconstruction project.

An increase of $1,112 in revenues and expenditures was requested from WISDOT for
reimbursement due to the harsh weather conditions in the first quarter of 2014.

An increase of $1,100 in expenditures resulting from an administrative fund transfer from the
Debt Service Reserve account for City Campus relocation costs.

An increase of $2,615 in revenues and expenditures resulting from insurance proceeds for the
Courthouse Fire Project.

A $2,481 increase in revenues and expenditures for Courthouse Space Rental costs due to
increased expenditure authority resulting from the year-end breakeven process.
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e Human Services

0 An increase of $5,636 in revenues and expenditures resulting mainly from an increase in
member service claims due to increased enrollment.

o0 An increase of $1,900 in revenues and expenditures resulting from a fund transfer, and due to
the slower than expected closure of Rehabilitation Center-Hilltop.

e Parks, Recreation & Culture

o0 An increase of $1,933 in revenues and expenditures from state and federal grants to the Parks
Department to make repairs to parks facilities that were damaged during the July 2010 floods.

e Various

o0 Anincrease of $2,889 in revenues and expenditures through additional expenditure authority to
cover excess worker’s compensation costs. The majority of this was transferred into the General
Fund.

Transfers also represent the net budgeted funds to be provided by the General Fund to provide support to the
remaining governmental fund departments, proprietary fund departments, and component units to offset
any shortfalls between revenues and expenditures. The 2014 actual net contribution made by the General
Fund to other funds is $121,250.

The General Fund collects all property tax, sales tax revenue, and intergovernmental revenues not 